
AGENDA
 

Planning and Economic Development Policy Committee
 

September 7, 2022
8:30 am

VIRTUAL MEETING
City of Aurora

15151 E Alameda Parkway

Public Participation Dialing Instructions
Call in Number: 1(408)418-9388 

Access Code:  2498 789 8421  
 

Click here to join the WebEx meeting
This meeting will be live-streamed on the city’s YouTube channel. Watch at YouTube.com/TheAuroraChannel

Council Member Danielle Jurinsky, Chair
Council Member Dustin Zvonek, Vice Chair
Council Member Angela Lawson, Member

 
Council Goal: Be a great place to locate, expand and operate a business and provide for well-planned growth

and development.
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of Minutes 1

August 10, 2022 Draft Subject to Approval Councilmember Jurinsky

3. General Business

3.a. City Center Vision Update 9

Agenda long title: City Center Vision Update
Staff source name and title: Daniel Krzyzanowski, Planning Supervisor
Legal source name and title: Daniel Money, Senior Assistant City Attorney
Estimated Presentation/discussion time: 10 / 5

4. Miscellaneous Matters for Consideration

4.a. Aurora Economic Development Council

NO REPORT

https://auroragov.webex.com/auroragov/onstage/g.php?MTID=e0a77985aea32c4a8b1ec405cbe29ce30
https://www.youtube.com/user/theaurorachannel


4.b. Havana Business Improvement District

NO REPORT

4.c. Aurora Chamber of Commerce

NO REPORT

4.d. Planning Commission

NO REPORT

4.e. Oil and Gas Committee

NO REPORT

4.f. Business Advisory Board

NO REPORT

4.g. Retail

NO REPORT

4.h. Small Business

NO REPORT

4.i. Visit Aurora

NO REPORT

5. Confirm Next Meeting Date

Tentatively scheduled for October 12, 2022, at 8:30 AM MT

6. Adjournment



Planning and Economic Development Policy Committee Minutes   August 10, 2022 

Draft – Subject to Approval  

 1 

 

PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

Date: 

Time: 

August 10, 2022 

8:30 am 

 

Members Present Chair: Councilmember Danielle Jurinsky, Vice Chair: Councilmember 

Dustin Zvonek, Councilmember Angela Lawson 

Others Present Mayor Pro Tem Bergan 

Adrian Botham, Cathy DeWolf, Marisa Noble, Jessica Prosser, Becky 

Hogan, Gregg Johnson, Laura Perry, Dana Wilks , Tom Blevins, Rick 

Wells, Morgan Cullen, David Schoonmaker, Melissa Rogers, Kevin 

Hougen, Stephen Rodriguez, Bruce Dalton, Maria Alvarez, Andrea 

Barnes, Gregg Johnson, Daniel Brotzman, Diana Rael, Yuriy Gorlov, 

Sunny Banka, Huiliang Liu, Michelle Gardner, Jeffrey Moore, Cindy 

Colip, Jacob Cox, Brandon Cammarata, Andrea Amonick, Rachel Allen, 

Gayle Jetchick, Victor Rachael, Brian Rulla, Maria Alvarez, Jason 

Batchelor, Daniel Money, Brad Pierce, Tod Kuntzelman, Karen 

Hancock, Bob Oliva, Scott Berg, Jeannine Rustad, Mac Callison, 

Melvin E. Bush, Daniel Krzyzanowski, Julie Patterson, Mindy Parnes, 

Crystal Vigil 

 

              

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
             

  

2. APPROVAL OF JULY 13, 2022 DRAFT MINUTES–COUNCIL MEMBER 

JURINSKY 

 2.a. The minutes were approved.  
              

 

3. GENERAL BUSINESS 

 3.a. Introduction of New Management Assistant- Crystal Vigil  

Summary of Issue and Discussion: 

Jeannine Rustad, Director of Planning and Development Services  

 

Jeannine Rustad introduced Ms. Crystal Vigil. She has two years of experience in 

Aurora.  

1



Planning and Economic Development Policy Committee Minutes   August 10, 2022 

Draft – Subject to Approval  

 2 

 

Outcome: 

For information only.  

 

Follow-up Action: 

None required. 

 

3.b.  Retail Redevelopment Policy Update 

 Summary of Issue and Discussion: 

Andrea Amonick, Development Services Manager; Bob Oliva, Retail/Commercial 

Supervisor / Rachel Allen, Client Group Manager/Brian Rulla, Assistant Attorney II 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Bergan and Andrea Amonick presented this item. Aurora has an 

incentive program for retail focused on improving properties. However, there is a 

need to close a gap in bringing in tenants to vacant sites, which the city has heard 

from brokers, retailers, and property owners. The policy update will focus on 

increasing the emphasis on re-tenanting, reconfiguring, and or rehabilitating spaces 

or properties to accommodate new and desirable tenants. All incentives are 

reviewed by Council individually and this policy merely serves as guidance; it does 

not require a legislative change. Almost two-thirds of the general fund revenues, 

come from retail sales taxes. Incentives or rebates will be up to 30% of project 

costs. The portion of new taxes available is generally capped at 50% of the sales 

tax. This means that the city will still receive the benefit of any new economic 

development resulting from the incentives. The incentives will also be capped at the 

lesser of ten years or the life of the new tenant lease. The policy update will also put 

forward the goal of new revenue generation. 

 

Outcome: 

CM Jurinsky and CM Zvonek approved this item to move forward to Study 

Session. 

 

Follow-up Action: 

Staff will add this to the August 15th Study Session. 

 

3.c.  Aerotropolis District /Northeast Aurora Development Update 

 Summary of Issue and Discussion: 

Mindy Parnes, Long Range Planning Manager/ Mac Callison, Transportation 

Planning Supervisor / Dan Money, Senior Assistant City Attorney   

 

Mindy Parnes presented this item. Former Council Member (CM) Gruber initiated 

an effort to brand Aerotropolis and rename the primary entry as Aerotropolis 

Parkway. Through a coordinated effort with Public Works, Planning, and ARTA, 

the former Harvest Interchange at I-70 will now be Aerotropolis Parkway 

Interchange. Another connection being refined by property owners, developers, 

Public Works, and Planning is the Aerotropolis Parkway’s connection to DEN 

Airport. M. Parnes discussed the developments in Northeast Aurora. There is a total 

2



Planning and Economic Development Policy Committee Minutes   August 10, 2022 

Draft – Subject to Approval  

 3 

projected growth of 37,000 units yielding a population of about 98,000 people. 

There are millions of square feet of proposed commercial and 13,820 acres of 

proposed industrial.  

 

High Point has 299 acres residential, 126 acres mixed, 126 acres commercial, and 

326 acres of industrial proposed. Painted Prairie has 644 acres and 44,200 planned 

units. The town center, which is 59 acres, is already underway. They have also 

constructed about 400 homes and initially constructed the park to attract new 

builders. Aurora Highlands has 2,500 acres and 12,000 planned units. 360 units are 

under consideration and construction. They are also proposing a medical campus 

and commercial along the main street. Green Valley has 588 acres and 2,600 

planned units which 350 of are under construction. They also have a senior housing 

component. Windler has 840 acres, 5,000 planned residential units, and 223 acres of 

industrial, commercial, and mixed-use. Their master plan with amendments and site 

plans are currently in process. Fulenwider has 726 acres of planned industrial, 

mixed-use, and multi-family. They have 1,200 multi-family units planned. The 

Gaylord Rockies Resort is planning its second phase which would be a 20% 

increase. The Rockies Village is planned to have residential and commercial to 

support the development. Porteos initiated and negotiated the access to DEN 

Airport as one of the first industrial pioneers in the area. They have 750 acres. JAG 

Logistics is within Porteos and is a great partner in the city and their connection 

with aviation support.  

 

Around the I-70 area is the Majestic Commerce Center which has 1,600 acres and 

11 million square feet of industrial with 6 million acres already constructed. Aurora 

Commerce Center has 153 acres with industrial buildings ranging from 130,000 to 

600,000 square feet. Stafford Logistics also has industrial buildings ranging from 

130,000 to 600,000 square feet. Prologis Park 70 has 571 acres with large-scale 

industrial buildings. To the South of I-70 is the Horizon Town Center. The Horizon 

Development has 7,700 planned residential units. They are proposing 3.6 million 

square feet of mixed-use and commercial development.  

 
o CM Jurinsky asked where the District 4 Police Station will be located. J. 

Batchelor explained that they are looking at different locations for all facilities 

including police, fire, parks, and libraries as part of the Capital Improvement 

Master Plan.  

o CM Zvonek asked where they will put the Bronco Stadium. J. Batchelor said 

that it may be off of 64th Avenue as it is made to be an entertainment and 

destination district. He added that being near the Gaylord Rockies and Painted 

Prairie Town Center would be a good location for that asset.  

o CM Jurinsky stated that all the developments are incredible, and they cannot 

wait to see them built up.  

 

 

 

 

3



Planning and Economic Development Policy Committee Minutes   August 10, 2022 

Draft – Subject to Approval  

 4 

Outcome: 

Information only. 

 

Follow-up Action: 

 None required. 

 

3.d.  Aurora Economic Development Strategy 

 Summary of Issue and Discussion: 

Daniel Krzyzanowski, Planning Supervisor, and Jennifer Orozco, Senior 

Development Project Manager, Planning and Development Services Department / 

Daniel Money, Senior Assistant City Attorney 

 

Daniel Krzyzanowski presented this item which outlines a proposal to develop an 

Economic Development Strategy for Aurora. Economic Development is the 

attraction, retention, and growth of jobs and investment in the city. Aurora has had 

successes in attracting and growing development and jobs. The strategic planning 

approach allows Aurora, its partners, and stakeholders to have the opportunity to 

carefully look at the economy and opportunities in a comprehensive and 

collaborative way. This strengthens connections and coordination between the city 

and its stakeholders. The strategy is part of the Aurora Places Comprehensive Plan.  

 

The desired outcomes are to strengthen and diversify the economy, grow the 

number of jobs and incomes, look at the practical tools of policies, practices, and 

resources available, attract new employers and investments to come into Aurora, 

and continue to cultivate established businesses in Aurora. The first step of the 

process includes reviewing economic conditions, existing resources and 

organizations, and best processes. Staff will develop an economic existing condition 

study and research on successful approaches to growth and development that are 

responsive to current trends. The next step is to engage stakeholders through 

interviews, focus groups, public meetings, and forums. Information received will 

shape strategic goals and recommendations. These will be brought back to the 

community to ensure coordination and collaboration. Primary partners include those 

directly related to economic development such as AEDC, Chamber of Commerce, 

Visit Aurora, SBDC, and others. They will also be invited to serve on the steering 

committee to provide data and input. Additional stakeholders include major 

employers, school districts, industries, and retailers. Staff also wants to look at the 

opportunities and resources that the state may provide in addition to regional 

resources. The general public, including residents, businesses, and development 

communities, will also be consulted. 

 

The project will be led by city staff and a consultant will be brought in to support 

the process. The consultant will provide subject matter expertise on economic 

development and facilitate stakeholder engagement sessions. A budget request for 

the consultant will be sent to Council.  

 

4



Planning and Economic Development Policy Committee Minutes   August 10, 2022 

Draft – Subject to Approval  

 5 

o CM Zvonek highlighted the importance of having a goal envisioned for 

economic development with which the core strategies and tactics would stem to 

ensure the success of the overall effort. 

 

Outcome: 

CM Jurinsky and CM Zvonek approved this item to move forward to Study 

Session. 

 

Follow-up Action: 

Staff will move this item to September Study Session  

 

3.e.  A Resolution in Support of Enhanced Design Guidelines for Chase Drains 

 Summary of Issue and Discussion: 

Victor Rachael, Deputy Director of Public Works Engineering / Michelle Gardner, 

Sr. Assistant City Attorney 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Bergan and Victor Rachael presented this item. Staff has been 

working with the public, particularly in Southeast Aurora, regarding drainage 

concerns. In line with this, they are putting forward a resolution to support revisions 

in the Roadway Manual. The manual is expected to be published in fall or winter of 

2022 following engagement with the development community and revisions. The 

update will allow flexibility and affordability to homeowners that would want to 

install chase drains. Determination if a chase drain will be required is done at the 

time of development. The resolution will reduce the threshold from three units 

flowing towards the sidewalk to two units, at which point a chase drain is required. 

In addition, if there are two sump pumps pumping water into the side yard swale, a 

chase drain would be required / installed. Additionally, Aurora Water created a 

waterwise program that includes eliminating grass or curbside landscaping and 

replacing it with water-wise landscaping. These also help with some drainage 

concerns. An acknowledgement to this program is included in the resolution. 

Aurora will work with the development community and builders to investigate and 

address drainage issues within a 12-month period after the purchase of a home.  

 

o Mayor Pro Tem Bergan mentioned that they will talk to Legal to ensure that 

those that regrade their yard would not qualify. V. Rachael confirmed this. He 

explained that when a home is built, there is an approved grading plan. They 

will ensure that builders are not penalized if homeowners made changes that 

were not approved or have an effect on the issue at hand. 

  

Outcome: 

CM Jurinsky and CM Zvonek approved this item to move forward to Study 

Session. 

 

 

Follow-up Action: 

Staff will add this item to the agenda for a future Study Session.   

5



Planning and Economic Development Policy Committee Minutes   August 10, 2022 

Draft – Subject to Approval  

 6 

 

              

 

4. MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 

4. a. Aurora Economic Development Council 

Yuri Gorlov expressed his support for the Economic Development Initiative and 

presented the updates from the Aurora Economic Development Council (AEDC). 

Aurora has gone from having three business parks 20 years ago to more than two 

dozen that are actively pursuing users. This is a testament to general economic 

growth from marketing and promoting Aurora as a competitive city of business on a 

national and global scale. In 2022, the EDC has closed eight deals including a 

coffee roaster, 5G pole manufacturer, and smart pallet start-up. These deals will 

bring more than $2 billion of capital investment into the city and create millions of 

dollars of tax revenue. The Council is currently working with 14 companies that 

could potentially to come to Aurora. 

 

An economist from CU mentioned that there are major headwinds coming. 

However, there is a silver lining for companies and industries that have not been at 

the forefront such as those in the fintech and mortgage industries that hired more 

people and are now starting to lay several people off. Aurora is not seeing the same 

trend given that it is not a work-from-home city. AEDC thinks that companies will 

pull money from their cash reserves to invest and build. Given that Aurora has the 

available portfolio of land and developments, this will be an advantage. There are 

developers from California, Minnesota, and other Midwestern states that are 

interested in Aurora because it is a different market. Despite Aurora being more 

expensive, companies enter these markets to grow their market share and hire 

skilled people.  

 

Industrial lease rates are continuing to rise, but office rates have held steadily. 

Vacancy rates are not as high as the reported 50 to 70% for Downtown since 

Aurora has a smaller office market and tech center. In Aurora, there are still lots of 

companies leasing and subleasing. AEDC will sponsor an event at the Gaylord next 

week about data centers. They will share information regarding Aurora’s incentive 

attraction program and all the capabilities available for data centers.  

 

o CM Zvonek commented that companies go after a more educated and skilled 

workforce and the low taxes in Colorado despite the higher costs of living. 

Gorlov mentioned that the tax environment is good, and the skills are diverse. 

He commented that education attainment levels in Aurora have climbed, and 

this is something they talk about to software development and aerospace-related 

companies. He added that they had conversations with those in the automotive 

industry including Rivian, an electric vehicle manufacturer. He mentioned that 

they were looking at Aurora because of its engineering concentration, especially 

in Ward VI.  

 

6



Planning and Economic Development Policy Committee Minutes   August 10, 2022 

Draft – Subject to Approval  

 7 

4.b. Havana Business Improvement District 

• Chance Horiuchi:  

NO REPORT 

 

4.c. Aurora Chamber of Commerce 

• Kevin Hougen: 

NO REPORT 

 

4.d. Planning Commission 

• Melvin Bush: 

 NO REPORT 

 

4.e. Oil and Gas Committee 

• Brad Pierce:  

NO REPORT  

 

4.f. Business Advisory Board 

• Garrett Walls 

NO REPORT 

 

4.g. Retail 

• Bob Oliva  

NO REPORT 

 

4.h. Small Business 

• Elena Vasquez: 

NO REPORT 

 

4.i. Visit Aurora 

• Bruce Dalton 

NO REPORT 

 

 Staff submitted a ticket to IT regarding technical issues.  

             

 

5. CONFIRM NEXT MEETING DATE 

 

Councilmember Jurinsky confirmed next meeting date of September 7, 2022 at 8:30 AM. 

              

 

6. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

7



Planning and Economic Development Policy Committee Minutes   August 10, 2022 

Draft – Subject to Approval  

 8 

 

 

APPROVED: ________________________      

  Danielle Jurinsky, Committee Chair  

 

8



 

 

CITY OF AURORA 
Council Agenda Commentary 

 

 

 

Item Title:  City Center Vision Update 
 

Item Initiator:  Daniel Krzyzanowski, Planning Supervisor, Planning and Development Services 

Staff Source/Legal Source:  Daniel Krzyzanowski, Planning and Development Services / Daniel Money, City Attorney’s Office 

Outside Speaker:  N/A 

Council Goal:  2012: 5.2--Plan for the development and redevelopment of strategic areas, station areas and urban centers 

 
COUNCIL MEETING DATES: 

 
Study Session:  N/A 
 
Regular Meeting:  N/A 
 

 
ITEM DETAILS:  

 
• Agenda long title: City Center Vision Update 
• Staff source name and title: Daniel Krzyzanowski, Planning Supevisor 
• Legal source name and title: Daniel Money, Senior Assistant City Attorney 
• Estimated Presentation/discussion time: 10 / 5 

 

 

 

ACTIONS(S) PROPOSED (Check all appropriate actions) 
 

☐  Approve Item and Move Forward to Study Session  ☐  Approve Item as proposed at Study Session 

 

☐  Approve Item and Move Forward to Regular Meeting ☐  Approve Item as proposed at Regular Meeting

  

☒  Information Only 

  

☐  Approve Item with Waiver of Reconsideration  

     Reason for waiver is described in the Item Details field. 
 
 
PREVIOUS ACTIONS OR REVIEWS: 
 

 Policy Committee Name:  Planning & Economic Development 
 

Policy Committee Date:  5/12/2021 
 
Action Taken/Follow-up: (Check all that apply) 
 

☐  Recommends Approval     ☐  Does Not Recommend Approval 

9



 

☐  Forwarded Without Recommendation   ☐  Recommendation Report Attached 

 

☒  Minutes Attached      ☐  Minutes Not Available 

 
 

 
HISTORY (Dates reviewed by City council, Policy Committees, Boards and Commissions, or Staff. Summarize 

pertinent comments. ATTACH MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETINGS, POLICY COMMITTEES AND BOARDS AND 
COMMISSIONS. 
 

The City Center Vision planning process was initiated in 2020 in response to development interest in the area. At 
that time, a new development proposal for the Metro Center property had been submitted for review, while the 
Aurora Town Center had redevelopment plans for a portion of the site, the first of what is likely to be a long-term 
effort to further develop and enhance the mall site. While the city has identified the area as a critical location and 

a portion of the study area has an urban renewal plan (2009) in place, there is not a documented vision and 
master development framework for the full study area against which to evaluate development proposals, 
incentives requests, and infrastructure investments. 
 
To help shape and support this development interest, the city initiated a planning process to develop a vision and 

development framework for the area. Stakeholder and public input has been gathered through a series of virtual 
meetings and online surveys. An initial draft plan was posted for public review and comment last year. 

 
The Planning and Economic Development (PED) Policy Committee was last briefed on the project on May 12, 
2021. At that meeting, staff provided an overview of the public outreach completed and planned to date and 
previewed draft content, including a vision statement, guiding principles and characteristics for future 
development, and recommended action steps to implement the vision. (Meeting minutes are attached.) 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission and Housing, Neighborhood Services, and Redevelopment Policy Committee 
received the same presentation at their meetings in April and May 2021. (Meeting minutes are attached.) 
 
 

ITEM SUMMARY (Brief description of item, discussion, key points, recommendations, etc.)  

 
Despite a delayed start due to Covid-19, the project was initiated in 2020. The project team has facilitated the 

steering committee and community engagement process, as well as started development of guiding principles and 
articulation of the community’s vision for future development in the area. Key elements of the process include: 

 
Steering Committee 
The project is supported by a steering committee whose role is to provide oversight on process and input on key 
issues. The steering committee is comprised of City Council representatives, Planning and Zoning Commission 
representatives, major property owners (including Metro Center and Town Center at Aurora), nearby residents, 
RTD and Arapahoe County, and city staff. The steering committee has met periodically throughout the project and 

has been briefed on all aspects of the planning process. The steering committee is scheduled to review the draft 
recommendations at their meeting on April 8, 2021. 
 
Community Engagement 
The city hosted virtual public meetings in late Summer and Fall 2020. At these online events, participants learned 
about opportunities for growth and development in the City Center area, as well as similar urban development in 
other area cities, including Downtown Westminster and Bel Mar in Lakewood. Speakers included Visit Aurora, 

AEDC, representatives from Parkside at City Center, and city staff. At a second public meeting, participants were 
invited to provide input into their desired development character and activities for the area. 
 
Additionally, the city asked for community input through an online survey that was open to the entire Aurora 
community and available in English and Spanish. Over 860 responses were received and provided the project 
team with a wealth of information on key topics that are important to the community. There was a lot of support 
for an active “downtown” district at City Center that included a wide variety of uses and activities. Unique or 

locally-owned businesses were especially desirable as were high-quality public parks and plazas. Respondents 
supported the idea of a “park once and walk” type of district that was safe, convenient, and comfortable to move 
throughout the district. 
 
Plan Development 

10



Staff developed a first draft of the City Center Vision document, which includes a vision statement, guiding 
principles, and series of recommendations to support implementation of the city’s vision for the area. The 
recommendations fall into four major categories: 
 

1. Vision and development framework 

This section articulates and illustrates the city’s vision for the future of the City Center area through a 
vision statement and guiding principles. It also describes the preferred land uses and district character, as 

well as recommendations for key locations within the area.  
 

2. Zoning and development standards 
This section provides zoning and development standards that provide regulatory direction that supports 
the vision. These standards address density and height, building design and placement, street design and 
connectivity, pedestrian and bicycle facilities, parking design, and integration of public parks, plazas, and 
open spaces, and other development considerations. 

 
3. Financial framework 

This section describes the toolkit of public incentives or support available to the city or future developers 
and outlines the types of development or infrastructure that City Council may consider for public support. 
 

4. Organizational framework 
This section highlights the value of branding and identity to the district and recommends shared benefits 

of formal organization of business and property owners in the district. 
 
This initial draft was posted online for public review and comment. Feedback on that draft was generally positive 
and supportive of the vision and recommended action steps.  
 
At the September 7 committee meeting, staff’s presentation will provide a brief overview of the project, outline 

the draft plan’s major elements, and proposed next steps toward completing the plan. 
 

 

 

QUESTIONS FOR COUNCIL 

 
Should staff proceed with the stakeholder and community outreach and bring forward a final draft plan for City 

Council review and consideration? 

 

 

LEGAL COMMENTS 

 

The City Manager shall be responsible to the Council for the proper administration of all affairs of the City 

placed in his charge and, to that end, shall have the power and duty to make written or verbal reports at any 

time concerning the affairs of the City under his supervision upon request of the Council.  (City Charter § 7-

4(e)) (Money) 

 

PUBLIC FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

☐  YES  ☐  NO 

 

If yes, explain:  N/A 

 

PRIVATE FISCAL IMPACT 

 

☐  Not Applicable ☐  Significant  ☐  Nominal 

 

If Significant or Nominal, explain:  N/A 
 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



Housing Policy Committee Minutes 5/6/2021 FINAL                 City of Aurora 

  

1 

 

HOUSING, NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES & REDEVELOPMENT POLICY COMMITTEE 

May 6, 2021 

 

Members Present: Council Member, Chair Nicole Johnston 

 Council Member, Vice-Chair Alison Coombs 

 Council Member, Marsha Berzins 

  

Others Present:   Council Member Juan Marcano, Council Member Crystal Murillo, George Adams, Meg 

Allen, Andrea Amonick, Scott Campbell, Sharon Duwaik, Liz Fuselier, Angela Garcia, 

Jeff Hancock, Karen Hancock, Tim Joyce, Samara Kellem, Daniel Krzyzanowski, Omar 

Lyle, Jennifer Orozco, Mindy Parnes, Jessica Prosser, Roberto Venegas, Anthony 

Youngblood, Sandra Youngman 

 

 

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

Council Member Johnston welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

 

MINUTES 

Minutes of the April 1, 2021 meeting were approved. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
No announcements were made. 

 

NEW ITEMS 

City Center Vision Update  

Summary of Issue and Discussion    

 

Council Member Coombs introduced Daniel Krzynowski and Jennifer Orozco to present.  

 

Jennifer opened the presentation by reviewing the focus study area which is located east of I-225, north and south 

of Alameda Avenue. Jennifer explained that the area in review captures all four corners of the Sable Boulevard and 

Alameda Avenue intersection. including the Aurora Metro Center corner, Aurora Municipal Center corner, Town 

Center of Aurora corner, and Aurora City Place corner. Jennifer advised that the property owners of this area, 

members of our stakeholder committee and surrounding neighborhood groups to engage in this study. Jennifer 

mentioned this particular area in the study has been a part of many studies and improvements over the past 30 years. 

Jennifer reviewed some of the most recent developments in the area that include, Parkside at City Center (mixed-

use), Fieldhouse USA (entertainment), Raising Cane’s (restaurant), In-and-Out (restaurant) and Alameda View 

(affordable housing). Jennifer provided an overview of the project summary and process: assess current conditions, 

opportunities and challenges within area; Engage the public about their desires for the City Center’s future; Identify 

a vision and development framework for future growth; create a planning document to help guide development and 

public improvements. Jennifer also reviewed six plan components that include: existing conditions and historical 

city investment, community survey results, City Center Vision, development framework, financial framework, and 

organizational framework to all help implement the plan.   

 

Daniel began to present a more extensive look into these six plan components and review each component highlights 

and important content. 

 

 

Questions/Comments –  

 

24



Housing Policy Committee Minutes 5/6/2021 FINAL                 City of Aurora 

  

2 

 

CM Coombs expresses concerns about the extensive discussion referring to a mix of incomes in relation to housing 

and a mix of housing types but having no mention or discussion of affordable housing and what partners we would 

be working with to integrate affordable housing. 

 

 Daniel Krzynowski answers and reviews that a wide variety of households are to be expected including affordable 

housing and they would like to make sure that it's articulated in the plan.  

 

Jennifer Orozco follows up and states that they are currently conducting a study with a consultant that's looking 

into specifically at what income levels they would want to target for an affordable housing project, maybe a mixed 

income project where you actually have market rate units in the same building as affordable units hoping to get that 

study back within the next few months. 

 

CM Berzins comments that she has been able to see some the plans over the years and there is affordable in there 

and we do have a possibility for another larger apartment building north on Sable. If that goes, we really will have 

some nice affordable housing low income housing mixed in with all different ranges of housing. I am grateful to 

the developers for their vision and bringing that to Aurora. CM Berzins states that she wishes it wasn't taking so 

long but understands the process takes time. She wanted to thank the staff for all that they are doing. 

 

CM Johnston echoed her colleagues’ sentiments and looks forward to the downtown offerings and thanks Jennifer 

and Daniel for the update and the presentation.  

 

CM Murillo comments that she is excited for the vision and opportunity for mixed income. CM Murillo explains 

she understands that there are development requirements and considerations. CM Murillo is hopeful that we have a 

hand in being able to infuse affordability. CM Murillo expresses uplifting the concurrent work that the City is doing 

around equity planning. The City is in the strategic planning process and after that, the City Manager’s intent to 

revive the conversation surrounding equity analysis that CM Murillo has been pushing. CM Murillo is hopeful to 

dovetail into the kind of larger conversations around how we use urban renewal funds or other city powered 

functions to infuse equity into that development. CM Murillo provides the example on how the Montbello 

Organizing committee was able to redevelop their area from a community lead perspective and some the unique 

things they were able to do that were set aside for small business. CM Murillo is hopeful we are able to infuse equity 

into some of our tiny processes. CM Murillo is excited and looking forward to the opportunities. 

 

 CM Marcano comments he is very excited about this. CM Marcano admires the amount of detail put in and where 

the general vision is going. CM Marcano did also express concern around the housing component. CM Marcano 

asks what would it take the move away from the market rate entirely as in what level of subsidy would we be 

looking at? CM mentions the removal of our typical partners. CM Marcano expresses great concern with the current 

state of housing in the United States, especially in Aurora. He expresses that Aurora is the eviction capital of 

Colorado for almost a decade running. CM Marcano suggests moving away from our typical business. CM Mercano 

expresses that this area would be a great place to implement a different approach instead of using our typical 

approach.  

 

Daniel Krzynowski responds to CM Marcano’s question and suggests that the study information Jennifer presented 

earlier, was looking at opportunities for affordable housing, identify at what levels there is demand and to develop 

income thresholds.  

 

CM Marcano commented that we have a lot of great information that shows where we have those deficits and that’s 

where he’d like to see every unit of housing basically dedicated to, if possible. CM Marcano states that her would 

like to know what kind of commitment that would require from us or what other partnerships may be available to 

us with other financing strategies might be able to make that happen.  

 

Daniel Krzynowski suggests that we can try to put a finer point on that in some of our implementation 

recommendations. Daniel mentions that our housing community services department has been involved and are 

25



Housing Policy Committee Minutes 5/6/2021 FINAL                 City of Aurora 

  

3 

 

ready to work with some of the developers in the area on potential affordable housing or some new types of housing.  

RTD has also found an interest in affordable housing at or near some of their stations and those conversations have 

been started. Daniel advises that we looking to pursue those conversations with them as a partner to understand 

what and how housing affordability and their stations can mix.  

 

CM Berzins comments that she disagrees. CM Berzins states that it’s our charge to provide housing for everyone 

and if we did something like that, we are not fulfilling our job. Metro station is meant to serve everyone, all income 

levels, and all diversity. CM Berzins advises that we do need to provide market rate housing. CM Berzins recalls 

the housing study that revealed we are short on higher end housing. CM Berzins suggested that being we would 

like to move in the direction of working where you live, she suggests that we also provide housing options for those 

who are doctors, professions, and lawyers for example. CM Berzins states that ideally, we can have housing for all 

from low-income to high-end housing for those on each income level and having a variety of options.  

 

CM Marcano asks if he can add a comment and clarify. CM Marcano advises that he would like to move forward 

and be straight forward with how he speaks about social housing (mixed income). CM Marcano states he rejects to 

the notion that just because you earn a lot of money, you should have housing that still costs a fortune.  

 

CM Johnston thanks CM Marcano for his comment. CM Johnston goes on to comment that by the time some things 

get to council, its further in process, with that being said she does appreciate CM Marcano bringing some of these 

issues up now. CM Johnston understands that the presentation was the result of the study, but she would like to dive 

more into this in a future agenda item with some these issues perhaps at our June meeting. CM Johnston advised 

she doesn’t know if that’s too early but maybe CM Marcano can work with staff on some of those questions and 

issues and urban renewal funds, we can have more of a robust discussion on that.  

 

CM Marcano agrees with that suggestion made by CM Johnston.  

 

CM Coombs comments by adding that when that study is done, we should get a sense of what mixed income housing 

might look mixed all in together in a way that works and is doable.  

 

Daniel states that staff is happy to work with CM Marcano and the members of this committee to help sort that 

scope of discussion for a little deeper dive on housing so we’ll look forward to that.  

 

Melissa Rogers asked the question of if the discussion in June, would it be specific to City Center or is more general?  

 

CM Johnston suggests that she would like it to be general but also thinks that with this discussion, we’re getting 

plans in place if it could be City Center.  

 

CM Marcano states he does want to have the discussion more generally but thinks this a great opportunity to really 

focus and see what we can make work. 

 

 

Outcome – This item was informational only and no action was taken.  

 

Potbellied Pigs 

Summary of Issue and Discussion    

 

Anthony Youngblood, Manager of Animal Services presented on Potbellied Pigs. Anthony explains, Animal 

Services had received an email in regard to a resident wanting to adopt a potbellied pig and ask questions 

surrounding that. Pigs are considered livestock according to Animal Code by ordinance. Livestock is only allowed 

in residential agricultural areas. Anthony explains that we have taken a look at the guidelines and regulations in 

other jurisdictions as it pertains to potbellied pigs. A variety of pigs were shown and explained the differences in 

height and weight and the correct terms used when describing certain breeds of pigs. Anthony also reviewed with 

26



Housing Policy Committee Minutes 5/6/2021 FINAL                 City of Aurora 

  

4 

 

the committee some of the other jurisdiction’s regulations. Anthony also explained the type of environments that 

would be best for the pigs. Anthony also reviewed with the committee the accessibility of care for pigs.  Anthony 

explained some of the behaviors of these pigs. Anthony explained that a pig cannot be seen by a regular veterinarian 

but by a large animal/farm veterinarian which are scarce in our area and would need to outsource from another area 

such as up north in Bennett. 

 

CM Johnston advised Anthony that due to time restraints, we would need to move on to the official staff 

recommendation. Anthony proceeded to move forward to recommendation. 

 

Questions/Comments –  

Anthony asked the committee if the committee wishes to move forward with community engagement around the 

amendment to the livestock portions of the ordinance to work towards an amendment to the ordinance allowing 

potbellied pigs to be allowed in residential zoned areas? 

 

CM Coombs presented the question of potentially permitting livestock, and if we are limiting it only two pigs? She 

also commented that if we’re going to do community engagement, are there other types of livestock that people 

would want or have questions about? CM Coombs mentions that we have had the chicken’s discussion in the past 

and some people want goats. CM Coombs suggested opening that discussion, we should perhaps have a more well-

rounded discussion. 

 

Anthony Youngblood responded it is a great and that we would gage the community conversations towards all 

livestock not just pigs. The pigs were the main focus because that was the main topic from the email from the 

constituent. Anthony also explained that goats and pigeons are huge in the north part of Aurora. 

 

CM Berzins commented that she had no idea there such things as pigs that stay small like “teacup dogs”. CM 

Berzins agreed that we can have more conversation about it. CM Berzins expressed concern about how people 

would them living in apartments, public safety and cleanliness. CM Berzins stated that it sounds like majority of 

the committee wants to expand the conversation, not just the potbellied pigs but livestock in general.  

 

CM Johnston is in support of moving forward with the conversation and asked about engagement, not just give it 

to those who are asking.  

 

Anthony replied that he intends to continue with community engagement. 

 

CM Murillo commented with the suggestion of recommending staff to connect with a Pig Sanctuary who had 

reached out because they were in support of moving something forward and they might be willing to work more 

collaboratively with some the issues around care. She also explained if our veterinarians and our facilities are not 

able to properly address issues in a cost-efficient way, we could develop some sort of IGA or MOU with a pig 

sanctuary organization that would be able to assist with the needs and concerns. She is in support of the city moving 

forward with the conversation. 

 

CM Marcano commented that he also learned something new regarding the sizing of the pigs. CM Marcano 

expressed concerns regarding behaviors of these pigs and spaces that these animals would be raised in. He advised 

he is in support of moving forward.  

 

 

Outcome – The Committee unanimously agreed to move this item forward to study session with suggestion of 

continued community engagement and other animals being included.  

 

 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Aurora, Colorado, Expressing 

27



Housing Policy Committee Minutes 5/6/2021 FINAL                 City of Aurora 

  

5 

 

the Aurora City Council’s Support of the City of Aurora, Colorado Funding Archway Housing & Services, 

Inc. with Community Development Block Grant COVID-19 Funding to Provide Coun   

Summary of Issue and Discussion    

Jessica Prosser advised the group that there are no prepared presentations created for each resolution item. Jessica 

Prosser explained the item summary located on the commentary of each item will give a description of each item. 

Jessica also advised these items were a part of COVID Funding from HUD. Jessica explained Community 

Development did a notice of funding process for a total of 10 agreements, including the ones on today’s agenda. 

Jessica advised not all agreements will go through council for approval due to the amount of funding. These 

agreements items are funding food assistance, case management, and housing assistance through nonprofit 

organizations. Jessica asked council for support to move these items forward to study session. 

 

Questions/Comments –  

CM Johnston commented she is in favor of moving these items forward to Study Session. 

 

CM Berzins commented she is in favor of moving these items forward to Study Session and make additional 

comments there. 

 

CM Coombs also commented she is in favor of moving these items forward to Study Session. 

 
Outcome – The Committee unanimously agreed to move this item forward to study session.  

 

  

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Aurora, Colorado, Expressing the Aurora City Council’s 

Support of the City of Aurora, Colorado Funding SecorCares with Community Development Block Grant 

COVID-19 Funding toProvide Meal Activities for the Ye 

Summary of Issue and Discussion    

Jessica Prosser advised the group that there are no prepared presentations created for each resolution item. Jessica 

Prosser explained the item summary located on the commentary of each item will give a description of each item. 

Jessica also advised these items were a part of COVID Funding from HUD. Jessica explained Community 

Development did a notice of funding process for a total of 10 agreements, including the three on today’s agenda. 

Jessica advised not all agreements will go through council for approval due to the amount of funding. These 

agreement items are funding food assistance, case management, and housing assistance through nonprofit 

organizations. Jessica asked council for support to move these items forward to study session. 

 

Questions/Comments –  

CM Johnston commented she is in favor of moving these items forward to Study Session. 

 

CM Berzins commented she is in favor of moving these items forward to Study Session and make additional 

comments there. 

 

CM Coombs also commented she is in favor of moving these items forward to Study Session. 

 
Outcome –  

The Committee unanimously agreed to move this item forward to study session.  

 

 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Aurora, Colorado, Expressing the Aurora City Council’s 

Support of the City of Aurora, Colorado Funding Rocky Mountain Welcome Center with Community 

Development Block GrantCOVID-19 Funding to Provide Meal Ac 

Summary of Issue and Discussion   

28



Housing Policy Committee Minutes 5/6/2021 FINAL                 City of Aurora 

  

6 

 

Jessica Prosser advised the group that there are no prepared presentations created for each resolution item. Jessica 

Prosser explained the item summary located on the commentary of each item will give a description of each item. 

Jessica also advised these items were a part of COVID Funding from HUD. Jessica explained Community 

Development did a notice of funding process for a total of 10 agreements, including the three on today’s agenda. 

Jessica advised not all agreements will go through council for approval due to the amount of funding. These 

agreement items are funding food assistance, case management, and housing assistance through nonprofit 

organizations. Jessica asked council for support to move these items forward to study session. 

Questions/Comments –  

 

CM Johnston commented she is in favor of moving these items forward to Study Session. 

 

CM Berzins commented she is in favor of moving these items forward to Study Session and make additional 

comments there. 

 

CM Coombs also commented she is in favor of moving these items forward to Study Session. 

 
Outcome –  

The Committee unanimously agreed to move this item forward to study session.  

 

 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Aurora, Colorado, Expressing the Aurora’s City Council’s 

Support for Funding Aurora Comprehensive Community Mental Health Center, Inc., DBA Aurora Mental 

Health Center Inc.’s Social Detox Program with Law En 

Summary of Issue and Discussion    

Jessica Prosser explained to the group that these final two agreements on the agenda are apart of the traditionally 

known program called Nexus Program, we are referring to now as the Surcharge program. Jessica explained these 

agreements are set for the second half of the year of this program. Jessica states we have previously funded the 

program the first half, and after review of review from the first half, we would like to support the second half of 

the year which would be from June to December using marijuana funds. Jessica explains typically we would do a 

full one-year agreement but wanted to take time to evaluate the income.  

 

Questions/Comments –   

CM Johnston commented that she is fine with moving the two agreements forward to study session. She also 

asked that staff gather some additional information needed to answer some additional questions and concerns. CM 

Johnston advised she would forward that email that was sent to the City Council email pertaining the questions 

and concerns. 

 

CM Berzins commented that she agreed to move forward the two agreements. 

 

CM Coombs commented she also agrees with moving forward the two agreements. CM Coombs did express 

concern and would like to have that additional information. CM Coombs stated she is in support of funding the 

program especially with the critical services they provide.  

 

Jessica Prosser commented and advised that a meeting will be taking place with the interim Executive Director 

and Board prior to study session. 

 

Outcome –   

The Committee unanimously agreed to move this item forward to study session.  

 

 

 

29



Housing Policy Committee Minutes 5/6/2021 FINAL                 City of Aurora 

  

7 

 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Aurora, Colorado, Expressing the Aurora City Council’s 

Support for Funding Gateway Domestic Violence Services DBA Aurora/Arapahoe Battered Women’s 

Shelter, Inc.with Law ENFORCEMENT NEXUS Program Funds for a 

Summary of Issue and Discussion    

Jessica Prosser explained to the group that these final two agreements on the agenda are apart of the traditionally 

known program called Nexus Program, we are referring to now as the Surcharge program. Jessica explained these 

agreements are set for the second half of the year of this program. Jessica states we have previously funded the 

program the first half, and after review of review from the first half, we would like to support the second half of 

the year which would be from June to December using marijuana funds. Jessica explains typically we would do a 

full one-year agreement but wanted to take time to evaluate the income.  

 

Questions/Comments –   

CM Johnston commented that she is fine with moving the two agreements forward to study session. She also 

asked that staff gather some additional information needed to answer some additional questions and concerns. CM 

Johnston advised she would forward that email that was sent to the City Council email pertaining the questions 

and concerns. 

 

CM Berzins commented that she agreed to move forward the two agreements. 

 

CM Coombs commented she also agrees with moving forward the two agreements. CM Coombs did express 

concern and would like to have that additional information. CM Coombs stated she is in support of funding the 

program especially with the critical services they provide.  

 

Jessica Prosser commented and advised that a meeting will be taking place with the interim Executive Director 

and Board prior to study session. 

 

Outcome –   

The Committee unanimously agreed to move this item forward to study session.  

 

 

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION 

Housing Strategy Update- 

Previous update provided the previous Monday. Jessica Prosser explained there are no additional updates to add.  

 

Mental Health Co-Responder Program Update- 

Jessica Prosser advised we are in the hiring process. Jessica advised that we are continuously meeting with our 

outside partners on a bi-weekly basis and communications team. Jessica also mentioned e are finalizing the name 

of the program and are working to do a late summer roll out for this program.  

 

Youth Violence Prevention Program Update- 

Jessica Prosser advised that the new program manager Christina A has been hired. We are currently working on 

committee meetings and creating an action table. Yesterday the request proposal was released to support youth pop 

up events. Jessica advised we are also working on hiring outreach specialists and coordinators supporting this 

program. 

 

Updates form Community Members- 

Brian Arnold advised is he no longer with Ready to Work and provided new contact information. 

 

Craig from Aurora Housing Authority- The American Rescue Plan will be giving out vouchers to serve those in 

Aurora, for families at risk of homeless. 

 

30



Housing Policy Committee Minutes 5/6/2021 FINAL  City of Aurora 

8 

Chance from Havana Street- Advises of continuing to support vaccination centers and announced the Eat on Havana 

Event this upcoming week to support our local restaurants.  

Questions/Comments 

CM Berzins commented that she would like to make sure the minutes transcribed include all the comments are 

reflected. 

CM Johnston complimented staff for continuously gathering data driven, decision making evidence-based policy 

that has been advocated for. CM expressed great disappointment in recent over-simplication of a social media post 

where comments made by Mayor Coffman regarding those experiencing homelessness and addiction issues, should 

sober up and get a job. CM Johnston found these statements to be disappointing and tone deaf.  

CM Marcano stated he had no other comments. 

CM Coombs stated she concurs with CM Johnston’s comment. 

Next meeting:  Thursday, June 3, 2021 at 8:30 a.m. 

Meeting adjourned at 10:01 a.m. 

APPROVED: ___________________________   

        Committee Vice Chair, Allison Coombs 

31

sswan
Stamp



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41


	Agenda
	2. Approval of Minutes
	3.a. City Center Vision Update
	3.a. City Center Vision Update
	3.a. City Center Vision Update
	3.a. City Center Vision Update

